

DEPENDENT ADULT ABUSE A Guide for Mandatory Reporters

July 2019

To make a report of suspected dependent adult abuse:
In the community, contact the Department of Human Services at 1-800-362-2178
In a health related facility, contact the Department of Inspections and Appeals at 1-877-686-0027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Dependent Adult Abuse Overview	4
National Data	5
Iowa Response	5
Am I a Mandatory Reporter of Dependent Adult Abuse?	6
How Do I Report Dependent Adult Abuse?	7
Report Requirements	8
Confidentiality and Immunity from Liability	9
Information Provided to Mandatory Reporter	9
Penalties of Mandatory Reporters	10
Indicators of Possible Dependent Adult Abuse	11
What Is Dependent Adult Abuse Under Iowa Law?	13
Definitions Used by DIA	
Victim	
Person Responsible for Abuse	
Physical Abuse	
Sexual Abuse	
Sexual Exploitation by a Caretaker	
Exploitation	
Neglect	
Personal Degradation	
Report Conclusions	
Victim	
Person Responsible for Abuse	
Exploitation	
Physical Abuse	
Sexual Abuse	
Sexual Exploitation by a Caretaker	
Denial of Critical Care and Self-Denial of Critical Care	
Personal Degradation	
How Does DHS Respond?	21
Evaluation or Assessment	
Boarding Homes	
Report Conclusions	
What Happens After the Evaluation?	23
Law Enforcement Intervention	24
Court Action	25
Substance Abuse Commitment	26
Mental Health Commitment	26
Conservatorship	27
Guardianship	27

How Is Dependent Adult Abuse Information Handled?	27
Retention of Records	
Access to Information	
To Request Dependent Adult Abuse Information	29
Request for Correction or Expungement of Abuse Information	
What Training Do Mandatory Reporters Need?	30
Forms	31
Resource Pages	37

Dependent Adult Abuse Overview

"Dependent adult" abuse allegations involve people who are aged 18 or over and are incapable of adequate self-care due to physical or mental conditions and require assistance from other people. Dependent adults may be elderly or may have diminished physical or mental capacities that prevent them from meeting their own needs adequately.

Researchers estimate that only 1 in 14 incidents of elder abuse actually come to the attention of law enforcement or human service agencies. Elder abuse is one of the most under-recognized and under-reported social problems in the United States. It is far less likely to be reported than child abuse because of the lack of public awareness. Nationally, it is estimated that over 55% of elder abuse is due to self-neglect. Such abuse can happen anywhere ... in private homes, at health care facilities and in the community at large.

lowa has an increasing proportion of people who are aged 60 or over. The number of persons 80 or over is increasing more rapidly than any other age group. Iowa's proportion of older adults in the population exceeds that of the United States as a whole. In 1993, the Department of Elder Affairs, Iowa State University, and area agencies on aging conducted a statewide needs assessment of non-institutionalized lowans aged 60 to 104. In general, older people in Iowa appear to be doing fairly well, but there are also large numbers who are vulnerable and at risk.

About half of the people in the study lived alone, a trend that is likely to continue into the next century. Those living alone are more likely to be older women with lower incomes. The older a woman becomes in our society, the more likely she is to live alone.

Health problems which occur when an elderly person lives alone are more likely to create problems for independent living. While many family and friends provide strong support systems for the elderly, many people who live alone have no one to help them and must rely on the provision of services or on paid assistance. In fact, the data shows that much of the assistance the elderly are receiving is coming from professionals. The elderly who are living alone must have services available to them in order to maintain their independence.

Dependent adults also include those who have diminished physical or mental capacity. People who have a diminished ability to protect themselves and are dependent on others for basic needs are particularly vulnerable to mistreatment, physical violence, threats of assault, verbal abuse, financial exploitation, physical or emotional neglect, and sexual abuse. Iowa has a sizable population of adults who are dependent but are not elderly.

National Data

All 50 states, the District of Columbia, and the U.S. Territories have adult abuse and neglect reporting laws that mandate certain professionals and institutions refer suspected maltreatment to a protection agency

The National Adult Maltreatment Reporting System (NAMRS) collects state Adult Protective Services (APS) data to provide consistent, accurate national data on the maltreatment of older adults and adults with disabilities. The information and data is divided into Agency Component, Key Indicators, and Case Component. States voluntarily submit information and data based on the federal fiscal year (FFY). The first year of submission was FFY2016.

National Adult Maltreatment reports are available at: https://acl.gov/programs/elder-justice/national-adult-maltreatment-reporting-system-namrs

<u>Iowa Response</u>

lowa Code Section 235B, "Dependent Adult Abuse," took effect on January 1, 1983, and has been amended yearly since then. This law authorizes the Department of Human Services (DHS) to accept reports of suspected dependent adult abuse, evaluate those reports, complete an assessment of needed services, make referrals for services, and maintain a central registry of abuse information.

DHS has legal authority to conduct evaluations and assessments of alleged dependent adult abuse that occurs in the community when it is alleged that:

- The victim meets the definition of being a dependent adult, and
- ♦ The victim suffers one or more of seven categories of abuse or neglect, and
- ◆ The abuse or neglect occurred as a result of the acts or omissions of a responsible caretaker or of the dependent adult.

DHS conducts approximately 1600 evaluations of dependent adult abuse annually. Dependent Adult Abuse Statistics regarding the reports of suspected dependent adult abuse and neglect received by the DHS are available on the DHS website at: https://dhs.iowa.gov/DependentAdultProtectiveServices/Families/Reports

Under Iowa Code Chapter 235E, the Department of Inspections and Appeals is now responsible for accepting reports of suspected dependent adult abuse in the following facilities and for completing evaluations of these reports:

- Health care facilities licensed in Iowa Code section 135C.1,
- Hospitals defined in Iowa Code section 135B.1,
- ◆ Elder group homes defined in Iowa Code section 231B.1,
- Assisted living programs certified in Iowa Code section 231C.3, and

♦ Adult day services programs defined in Iowa Code section 231D.1.

Additionally, dependent adult abuse may be a crime. Often the evaluating worker and law enforcement work together. Criminal laws provide for the prosecution of alleged perpetrators in cases where a criminal act has been committed.

Other laws provide other means of protection for dependent adults, including substitute decision makers and, when necessary, the involuntary commitment of adults for substance abuse or mental health reasons.

Services can be provided for dependent adults. However all adults have a right to selfdetermination. This means that the dependent adult can refuse services unless a court determines that the person is not competent to make decisions or is threatening his or her own life or that of others.

lowa Code section 235B.4 creates a central registry in DHS to provide a single source for the statewide collection, maintenance, and dissemination of dependent adult abuse information. The Central Abuse Registry includes report data, investigative data, and disposition data relating to reports of dependent adult abuse. The purpose of the Registry is to:

- Facilitate the identification of victims or potential victims of dependent adult abuse by making available a single, statewide source of dependent adult data.
- ◆ Facilitate research on dependent adult abuse by making available a single, statewide source of dependent adult abuse data.
- Provide maximum safeguards against the unwarranted invasions of privacy that such a registry might otherwise entail.

The Registry issues an annual report on its administrative operation, including information as to the number of requests for dependent adult abuse data, the proportion of requests attributable to each type of authorized access, the frequency and nature of irregularities, and other pertinent matters.

Am I a Mandatory Reporter of Dependent Adult Abuse?

lowa Code sections 235B.3(2) and 235E.2 require all of the following people to report suspected dependent adult abuse to the Department of Human Services or the Department of Inspections and Appeals if the person in the course of employment examines, attends, counsels, or treats a dependent adult and reasonably believes the dependent adult has suffered abuse:

- A member of the staff of a community mental health center
- ◆ A staff member or employee of a health care facility defined in Iowa Code 135C.1; hospital as defined in Iowa Code 135B; elder group home as defined in

lowa Code 231B.1; assisted living program certified under lowa Code 231C.3, or adult day services programs defined in Iowa Code 231D.1

- ♦ A peace officer
- ♦ An in-home homemaker-home health aide
- A person employed as an outreach person
- ♦ A health practitioner, as defined in Iowa Code section 232.68
- ◆ A member of the staff or an employee of a community supervised apartment living arrangement, sheltered workshop, or work activity center
- ♦ A social worker
- ♦ A certified psychologist
- A care review committee member assigned to an elder group home pursuant to lowa Code Chapter 231B

Note: **Any** other person who believes that a dependent adult has suffered abuse **may** make a report of the suspected abuse to DHS. Mandatory reporters may also report suspected abuse **outside** the scope of their professional practice, as **permissive** reporters. An employee of a financial institution may report suspected financial exploitation of a dependent adult.

How Do I Report Dependent Adult Abuse?

441 Iowa Administrative Code 176.4(235B) and 176.5(235B)

lowa Code Section 235B.3 requires that if you are a mandatory reporter of dependent adult abuse, and you suspect a dependent adult has been abused, you must report it to DHS. Iowa Code Section 235E.2 requires if the abuse occurred in a health care facility, hospital, elder group home, assisted living or adult day services program, you should report it to the Department of Inspections and Appeals (DIA). Make the report to DHS or DIA by telephone or by other means.

DHS accepts reports from any person who believes dependent adult abuse has occurred. DHS maintains a toll-free telephone line 1-800-362-2178, which is available on a 24-hour-a-day, seven-day-a-week basis. Any person may use this number to report cases of suspected dependent adult abuse. All authorized persons may also use this number for obtaining dependent adult abuse information. DIA can be contacted at 1-877-686-0027.

In addition to making a report to DHS, if you have reason to believe that immediate protection for the dependent adult is advisable, also make an oral report to the appropriate law enforcement agency. A county attorney or law enforcement agency that receives a report of dependent adult abuse must refer it to DHS.

You must also make a report in writing within 48 hours after your oral report. You may use DHS form 470-2441, *Suspected Dependent Adult Abuse Report*, or a format you develop that meets the requirements listed below, based on 441 lowa Administrative Code 176.5(235B). See the end of this handbook for a sample of form 470-2441.

If you are a staff member or employee, you must also immediately notify the person in charge or the person's designated agent. "Immediately" means within 24 hours from the time the mandatory reporter suspects abuse of a dependent adult. The employer or supervisor of a mandatory abuse reporter shall not apply any policy, work rule, or other requirement that interferes with the person making a report of dependent adult abuse or that results in the failure of another person to make the report.

If you are a staff member or employee of a facility or program licensed or certified by the DIA, you must immediately notify the person in charge or the person's designated agent, who then makes the report to the DIA, within 24 hours, unless the person you are to report directly to is the person you suspect of abusing the dependent adult

Report Requirements

Include in your report the following information, or as much of it as you are able to furnish:

- The names and home addresses of the dependent adult, relatives, caretakers, and other people believed to be responsible for the dependent adult's care.
- The dependent adult's present whereabouts, if not the same as the address given.
- ◆ The reason the adult is believed to be dependent.
- The dependent adult's age.
- ◆ The nature and extent of the adult abuse, including evidence of previous adult abuse.
- Information concerning the suspected adult abuse of other dependent adults in the same residence.
- Other information that you believe might be helpful in establishing the cause of the abuse or the identity of the people responsible for the abuse or helpful in assisting the dependent adult.
- Your name and address.

A report that meets the criteria will be accepted whether or not it contains all of the information listed.

Confidentiality and Immunity from Liability

Iowa Code section 235B.3, states in subsections 7 through 10:

The department shall inform the appropriate county attorneys of any reports of dependent adult abuse. The department may request information from any person believed to have knowledge of a case of dependent adult abuse. The person, including but not limited to a county attorney, a law enforcement agency, a multidisciplinary team, or a social services agency in the state shall cooperate and assist in the evaluation upon the request of the department. County attorneys and appropriate law enforcement agencies shall also take any other lawful action necessary or advisable for the protection of the dependent adult.

A person participating in good faith in reporting or cooperating with or assisting the department in evaluating a case of dependent adult abuse has immunity from liability, civil or criminal, which might otherwise be incurred or imposed based upon the act of making the report or giving the assistance. The person has the same immunity with respect to participating in good faith in a judicial proceeding resulting from the report or cooperation or assistance or relating to the subject matter of the report, cooperation, or assistance.

It shall be unlawful for any person or employer to discharge, suspend, or otherwise discipline a person required to report or voluntarily reporting an instance of suspected dependent adult abuse pursuant to subsection 2 or 4, or cooperating with, or assisting the department of human services in evaluating a case of dependent adult abuse, or participating in judicial proceedings relating to the reporting or cooperation or assistance based solely upon the person's reporting or assistance relative to the instance of dependent adult abuse. A person or employer found in violation of this subsection is guilty of a simple misdemeanor.

A person required by this section to report a suspected case of dependent adult abuse who knowingly and willfully fails to do so commits a simple misdemeanor. A person required by this section to report a suspected case of dependent adult abuse who knowingly fails to do so or who knowingly interferes with the making of a dependent adult abuse report or applies a requirement that results in a failure to make a report, is civilly liable for the damages proximately caused by the failure.

<u>Information Provided to Mandatory Reporter</u>

Legal reference: lowa Code 235B.3; 441 IAC 176.4(235B) and 176.5(235B)

Mandatory reporters are entitled to notification of the outcome of the report.

Upon request, all mandatory reporters are also entitled to receive a copy of the report, regardless of whether:

- Abuse was founded or unfounded, or
- Another mandatory reporter had already made the same report.

Advise mandatory reporters to complete form 470-0643, Request for Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Registry Information.

If a subsequent report is made involving the same abuse incident, consider the subsequent report to be a collateral contact. Advise the subsequent reporter the allegation has been previously reported. The reporter should receive notice that the intake allegation was previously accepted for investigation. This mandatory reporter is also entitled to outcome notice.

Penalties of Mandatory Reporters

A mandatory reporter who does any of the following concerning a suspicion of dependent adult abuse may be committing a simple misdemeanor and may be liable for civil damages:

- Knowingly and willfully fails to report.
- Interferes with the making of a report.
- Applies a requirement that results in the failure to report.

The employer or supervisor of a person who is required to report suspected dependent adult abuse may not apply a policy, work rule, or other requirement that interferes with a person making a report, or results in the failure of another to make a report.

The mandatory reporter may use form 470-2441, *Suspected Dependent Adult Abuse Report*, which outlines the necessary information. The mandatory reporter has a responsibility to make a written report to the Department within 48 hours following the oral report.

<u>Indicators of Possible Dependent Adult Abuse</u>

The following physical, behavioral, and environmental indicators are listed as signs of possible dependent adult abuse for you to consider in making your report. These lists are examples and are not all-inclusive.

Environment

- No food in the house/rotted, infested food
- Lack of proper food storage
- Special dietary foods not available
- Inadequate cooking facilities or equipment
- Clothes extremely dirty or uncared for
- Not dressed appropriately for the weather
- Inadequate or ill-fitting clothing, not dressing
- Wearing all of one's clothing at once
- Structure dilapidated or in poor repair
- Fallen steps, high grass, rotted porch, leaking roof
- Utilities cut off or lack of heat in winter
- Doors or windows made out of cardboard
- No friends or family visits
- No fuel for heating or fuel stored dangerously
- Lack of water or contaminated water
- Gross accumulation of garbage, papers, and clutter
- No means of transportation.

- Unvented gas heaters, chimney in poor repair
- Lack of access to essential rooms
- Lack of access to community resources
- Lives on the street
- Large number of pets with no apparent means of care
- ♦ No income, unpaid bills
- Out of money by second week of the month
- Income does not meet monthly expenditures
- Signs checks over to others
- Sudden change in money management habits
- Sudden withdrawals or closing out of bank accounts
- No TV, radio, telephone, newspapers, magazines
- Not physically able to get out and shop, pay bills, etc.

Physical Condition

- Lack of medical care
- Lack of personal cleanliness and grooming, body odors
- Swollen eyes or ankles, decayed teeth or no teeth
- Bites, fleas, sores, lesions, lacerations
- Multiple or repeated or untreated injuries
- Injuries incompatible with explanation
- ♦ Bruises, broken bones or burns

- Untreated pressure sores
- Signs of confinement (tied to furniture, locked in a room, etc.)
- Obesity, malnourishment or dehydration
- ♦ Tremors
- Difficulty in communication
- ♦ Broken glasses frames or lenses
- Drunk, overly medicated
- Lying in urine, feces, old food
- ♦ No use of limbs, lack of mobility

Behavior

- Intentional physical self-abuse, suicidal statements
- Persistent liar
- Does not follow medication directions
- Refuses needed medical attention
- Refuses to accept services offered by others
- Threatens or attacks others physically or verbally
- Refuses to accept presence of visitor
- Refuses to open door
- In total darkness
- Denies obvious problems (medical conditions, etc.)
- Increased depression, anxiety or hostility
- Withdrawn, reclusive, suspicious, timid, unresponsive

- Refuses to discuss the situation
- Lack of trust in family as well as in others
- Refuses to take medication
- Denies any wrong-doing, medically or otherwise
- Unjustified pride in self-sufficiency
- ♦ Procrastination
- Turns off hearing aid
- Hallucinations, confusion or delusions
- Disorientation as to place and time
- Forgetfulness, losing things, not shutting stove off
- ◆ Loneliness, anger, or fearfulness
- Diminished mental capacity
- Vague health complaints
- Longing for death

What Is Dependent Adult Abuse Under Iowa Law?

There are two laws, Iowa Code Chapter 235B for dependent adults in the community and Iowa Code Chapter 235E for dependent adults who live in facilities. "Facilities" include health care facilities defined in Iowa Code section 135C.1, hospitals defined in Iowa Code, section 135B.1, elder group homes defined in Iowa Code section 231B.1, assisted living programs defined in Iowa Code section 231C.1, and adult day services programs defined in Iowa Code section 231D.1.

Definitions Used by DIA

DIA evaluates reports of abuse in health care facilities, hospitals, assisted living programs, elder group homes, and adult day services programs.

As defined by Iowa code Section 235E.1, "dependent adult abuse" includes the following as a result of the willful misconduct or gross negligence or reckless acts or omissions of a caretaker, taking into account the totality of the circumstances.

- Physical abuse
- ♦ Sexual abuse
- Sexual exploitation by a caretaker
- ♦ Financial exploitation
- ♦ Neglect
- ♦ Personal degradation

Victim

To be accepted for evaluation, a report must concern a dependent adult. "Dependent adult" means a person 18 years of age or older whose ability to perform the normal activities of daily living or to provide for the person's own care or protection is impaired, either temporarily or permanently.

Person Responsible for Abuse

The abuse must have occurred as a result of actions taken by a "caretaker" who is a staff member of a facility or program and who provides care, protection, or services to a dependent adult voluntarily, by contract, through employment, or by order of the court.

Physical Abuse

"Physical abuse" means one of the following, as a result of the willful misconduct or gross negligence or reckless acts or omissions of a caretaker, taking into account the totality of the circumstances:

- ♦ Physical injury
- Injury which is at a variance with the history give of the injury
- ♦ Unreasonable confinement
- ♦ Unreasonable punishment
- ♦ Assault that involved the breach of skill, care, and learning ordinarily exercised by a caretaker in similar circumstances.

"Assault" means the commission of (1) any act that is generally intended to cause pain or injury to a dependent adult, or is generally intended to result in physical contact that would be considered by a reasonable person to be insulting or offensive or (2) any act that is intended to place another in fear of immediate physical contact that will be painful, injurious, insulting or offensive, coupled with the apparent ability to execute the act.

Sexual Abuse

"Sexual abuse" means the commission of a sexual offense under lowa Code chapter 709 or section 726.2 with or against a dependent adult. This includes the following sub-categories:

- First degree sexual abuse
- Second degree sexual abuse
- ♦ Third degree sexual abuse
- ♦ Indecent exposure
- Assault with intent to commit sexual abuse and incest
- Sexual exploitation by a counselor or therapist
- ♦ Invasion of privacy, nudity
- ♦ Incest

Sexual Exploitation by a Caretaker

"Sexual exploitation by a caretaker" means any consensual or nonconsensual sexual conduct with a dependent adult. This includes but is not limited to kissing; touching of the clothed or unclothed breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals; or a sex act as defined in Iowa Code section 702.17.

"Sexual exploitation" also includes the transmission, display, or taking of electronic images of the unclothed breast, groin, buttock, anus, or pubes that is not related to treatment or diagnosis or part of an ongoing investigation.

"Sexual exploitation" does not include touching that is part of a necessary examination, treatment, or care by a caretaker acting within the scope of the practice or employment of the caretaker; the exchange of a brief touch or hug between the dependent adult and a caretaker for the purpose of reassurance, comfort, or casual friendship; or touching between spouses or domestic partners in an intimate relationship.

Exploitation

"Exploitation" means a caretaker who knowingly obtains, uses, endeavors to obtain to use, or who misappropriates, a dependent adult's funds, assets, medications, or property with the intent to temporarily or permanently deprive a dependent adult of the use, benefit, or possession of the funds, assets, medication, or property for the benefit of someone other than the dependent adult.

Neglect

"Neglect" means the deprivation of the minimum food, shelter, clothing, supervision, physical or mental health care, or other care necessary to maintain a dependent adult's life or physical or mental health.

Dependent adult abuse in health care facilities, assisted living programs, elder group homes, and adult day service programs does not include the following circumstances:

- ◆ The dependent adult declines medical treatment because the adult holds a belief or is an adherent of a religion whose tenets and practices call for reliance on spiritual means in place of reliance on medical treatment.
- ◆ The dependent adult's caretaker declines medical treatment acting in accordance with the dependent adult's stated or implied consent.
- A dependent adult or the adult's next of kin or guardian requests withholding or withdrawing of health care from the adult who is terminally ill, in the opinion of a licensed physician, pursuant to the applicable procedures under lowa Code chapters 125, 144A, 222, 229, or 633.

Personal Degradation

"Personal degradation" means a willful act or statement by a caretaker intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the personal dignity of a dependent adult, or where the caretaker knew or reasonably should have known the act or statement would cause shame, degradation, humiliation, or harm to the personal dignity of a reasonable person.

"Personal degradation" includes the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image of a dependent adult by a caretaker, where the caretaker's actions constitute a willful act or statement intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the personal dignity of the dependent adult, or where the caretaker knew or reasonably should have known the act would cause shame, degradation, humiliation, or harm to the personal dignity of a reasonable person.

"Personal degradation" does not include the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image of a dependent adult for the purpose of reporting dependent adult abuse to law enforcement, the department, or other regulatory agency that oversees caretakers or enforces abuse or neglect provisions, or for the purpose of treatment or diagnosis or as part of an ongoing investigation. "Personal degradation" also does not include the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image by a caretaker in accordance with the facility's or program's confidentiality policy and release of information or consent policies.

Report Conclusions

DIA has three possible outcomes in a dependent adult abuse evaluation:

Founded: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence (more than 50%) that abuse has occurred. Information on founded reports is maintained on the Central Abuse Registry for ten years and then sealed.

Unfounded: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence (more than 50%) that abuse has not occurred. Information on unfounded reports is destroyed five years from the date they were unfounded.

Confirmed, not registered: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence abuse has occurred. When physical abuse or denial of critical care by a caretaker is determined to be minor, isolated and unlikely to reoccur, the report is maintained for five years and then destroyed, unless a subsequent report is founded.

If there is a subsequent report committed by the same caretaker within five years of the nonregistered report, it also may be considered minor, isolated, and unlikely to reoccur depending on the circumstances. These reports are called "assessments" rather than "evaluations." The subsequent reports will be kept for ten years and then sealed.

Definitions Used by DHS

As defined in Iowa Code section 235B.2, "dependent adult abuse" includes seven categories of abuse:

- ♦ Exploitation
- Physical abuse (including assault and unreasonable confinement or punishment)
- ♦ Sexual abuse
- Sexual exploitation by a caretaker
- Denial of critical care
- ♦ Self-Denial of critical care
- Personal Degradation

Victim

To be accepted for evaluation, a report must concern a dependent adult. Iowa Code section 235B.2 defines "dependent adult" as a person 18 years of age or older who is unable to protect the person's own interests or unable to adequately perform or obtain services necessary to meet essential human needs, as a result of a physical or mental condition that requires assistance from another.

Dependent adult abuse does not include allegations involving:

- ♦ Domestic abuse in a situation where the victim is not "dependent."
- People who are legally incarcerated in a penal setting, either in a local jail or in the custody of the Department of Corrections.

Person Responsible for Abuse

lowa Code section 235B.2 defines "caretaker" as a related or nonrelated person who has the responsibility for the protection, care, or custody of a dependent adult as a result of assuming the responsibility voluntarily, by contract, through employment, or by the order of the court.

Exploitation

"Exploitation" means the act or process of:

- ◆ Taking unfair advantage of a dependent adult or the adult's physical or financial resources without the informed consent of the dependent adult, including theft.
- ♦ By the use of undue influence, harassment, duress, deception, false representation, or false pretenses.
- As a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker.

Physical Abuse

"Physical abuse" means one of the following, as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker:

- Physical injury to a dependent adult
- Injury to a dependent adult which is at a variance with the history given
- Unreasonable confinement of a dependent adult
- Unreasonable punishment of a dependent adult
- Assault of a dependent adult

"An assault" is committed by a caretaker when, without justification, the person does any of the following:

- Any act which is intended to cause pain or injury to, or which is intended to result in physical contact which will be insulting or offensive to another, coupled with the apparent ability to execute the act.
- Any act, which is intended to place another in fear of immediate physical contact, which will be painful, injurious, insulting, or offensive, coupled with the apparent ability to execute the ace.
- ♦ Intentionally points any firearm toward another, or displays in a threatening manner any dangerous weapon toward another.

However, the act shall not be considered an assault when the person doing the act and the other person are voluntary participants in a sport, social or other activity that is not in itself criminal, and the act:

- Is a reasonably foreseeable incident of that sport or activity, and
- ♦ Does not create an unreasonable risk of serious injury or breach of the peace,

Note that there does not have to be an injury to constitute physical abuse.

Sexual Abuse

"Sexual abuse" means the commission of a sexual offense under lowa Code Chapter 709 or lowa Code section 726.2 with or against a dependent adult as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker. "Sexual abuse" includes the following subcategories:

- ♦ First degree sexual abuse
- Second degree sexual abuse
- ♦ Third degree sexual abuse
- ♦ Indecent exposure
- Assault with intent to commit sexual abuse and incest
- Sexual exploitation by a counselor or therapist
- Sexual exploitation of a dependent adult by a caretaker
- Invasion of privacy, nudity
- Incest

Sexual Exploitation by a Caretaker

"Sexual exploitation by a caretaker" means any consensual or nonconsensual sexual conduct with a dependent adult. This includes but is not limited to kissing; touching the clothed or unclothed inner thigh, breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals; or a sex act as defined in section 702.17.

Sexual exploitation also includes the transmission, display, or taking of electronic images of the unclothed breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals of a dependent adult by a caretaker for a purpose not related to treatment or diagnosis or as part of an ongoing assessment, evaluation, or investigation.

Sexual exploitation does not include touching which is part of a necessary examination, treatment, or care by a caretaker acting within the scope of the practice or employment of the caretaker; the exchange of a brief touch or hug between the dependent adult and a caretaker for the purpose of reassurance, comfort, or casual friendship; or touching between spouses.

Denial of Critical Care and Self-Denial of Critical Care

"Denial of critical care" means the deprivation of the minimum food, shelter, clothing, supervision, physical or mental health care, or other care necessary to maintain a dependent adult's life or health, as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker. This includes the following sub-categories:

- Denial of or failure to provide adequate food
- Denial of or failure to provide adequate shelter
- Denial of or failure to provide adequate clothing
- ◆ Denial of or failure to provide adequate medical care
- ◆ Denial of or failure to provide adequate mental health care
- Denial of or failure to meet emotional needs necessary for normal functioning
- ◆ Denial of or failure to provide proper supervision
- ◆ Denial of or failure to provide adequate physical care

Note: Denial of critical care may also be the deprivation of the minimum food, shelter, clothing, supervision, physical or mental health care, and other care necessary to maintain a dependent adult's life or health as a result of the acts or omissions of the **dependent adult**. (This includes the sub-categories listed above.)

Dependent adult abuse does **not** include the following circumstances:

- ◆ The dependent adult declines medical treatment because the dependent adult holds a belief or is an adherent of a religion whose tenets and practices call for reliance on spiritual means in place of reliance on medical treatment.
- ◆ The dependent adult's caretaker declines such treatment acting in accordance with the dependent adult's stated or implied consent, if the dependent adult holds a belief or is an adherent of a religion whose tenets and practices call for reliance on spiritual means in place of reliance on medical treatment.

The dependent adult or the dependent adult's next of kin or guardian requests withholding or withdrawal of health care from a dependent adult who is terminally ill, in the opinion of a licensed physician, pursuant to the applicable procedures under Iowa Code Chapters 125, 144A, 222, 229, or 633.

Personal Degradation

"Personal degradation" means a willful act or statement by a caretaker intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the personal dignity of a dependent adult, or where the caretaker knew or reasonably should have known the act or statement would cause shame, degradation, humiliation, or harm to the personal dignity of a reasonable person.

"Personal degradation" includes the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image of a dependent adult by a caretaker, where the caretaker's actions constitute a willful act or statement intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the personal dignity of the dependent adult, or where the caretaker knew or reasonably should have known the act would cause shame, degradation, humiliation, or harm to the personal dignity of a reasonable person.

"Personal degradation" does not include the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image of a dependent adult for the purpose of reporting dependent adult abuse to law enforcement, the department, or other regulatory agency that oversees caretakers or enforces abuse or neglect provisions, or for the purpose of treatment or diagnosis or as part of an ongoing investigation. "Personal degradation" also does not include the taking, transmission, or display of an electronic image by a caretaker in accordance with the facility's or program's confidentiality policy and release of information or consent policies.

How Does DHS Respond?

441 Iowa Administrative Code 176.6(235B)

Immediately upon receipt of a report of dependent adult abuse, DHS shall:

- Notify the local county attorney of the receipt of the report.
- Commence an appropriate evaluation or assessment.

The primary purpose of the evaluation or assessment is the protection of the dependent adult named in the report. The evaluation or assessment shall include all of the following:

- ◆ Identification of the nature, extent, and cause of the adult abuse, if any, to the dependent adult named in the report.
- The identification of the person or persons responsible for the adult abuse.
- ♦ A determination of whether other dependent adults in the same residence have been subjected to adult abuse.
- A critical examination of the residential environment of the dependent adult named in the report, and the dependent adult's relationship with caretakers and other adults in the same residence.
- A critical explanation of all other pertinent matters.

The DHS process of evaluating reports of dependent adult abuse is as follows:

- ♦ Intake
- ◆ Appropriate evaluation or assessment
- Contact with the dependent adult at the person's residence or at a care or training program
- Interview with the alleged perpetrator
- Obtaining information from subjects of the report and other relevant parties
- Documentation of conclusions and recommendations for services or court action
- Documentation of evaluation through completion of reports
- Completion of required correspondence to subjects and mandatory reporters

Reports of suspected abuse are rejected for evaluation or assessment for the following reasons:

- The subject of the report is not a dependent adult.
- The alleged perpetrator is not a caretaker.
- The allegations do not constitute abuse.
- The information provided is insufficient to suspect abuse.
- The information is provided in duplicative or in addition to a previous report.
- The report was referred to the Department of Inspections and Appeals.

You will be notified whether or not your report is accepted for evaluation or assessment.

Evaluation or Assessment

DHS may request information from any person believed to have knowledge of a case of dependent adult abuse. This includes but is not limited to a county attorney, a law enforcement agency, a multidisciplinary team, a social services agency in the state, or any person who is required to report dependent adult abuse, whether or not the person made the specific dependent adult abuse report.

The person **shall cooperate and assist** in the evaluation upon the request of DHS. County attorneys, law enforcement agencies, multidisciplinary teams, and social services agencies in the state shall cooperate and assist in the evaluation or assessment upon the request of DHS. County attorneys and law enforcement agencies shall also take any other lawful action necessary or advisable for the protection of the dependent adult.

With the consent of the dependent adult or caretaker, the evaluation or assessment may, when appropriate, include a visit to the residence of the dependent adult named in the report and an examination of the dependent adult.

DHS completes a copy of its evaluation or assessment report, including actions taken or contemplated, within 20 regular working days after it receives the adult abuse report, unless an extension of time for good cause is granted.

Upon completion of the report, all subjects and mandatory reporters are notified in writing of the conclusions of the evaluation or assessment report.

Boarding Homes

2009 Iowa Acts, Senate File 484, section 5

DIA registers boarding homes and DHS evaluates allegations of abuse in boarding homes, through a coordinated interagency approach. The composition of the multidisciplinary team depends on the allegations and discoveries made during an evaluation or assessment of abuse or violation of registration.

DHS and DIA may participate in an investigation composed of employees from the State Fire Marshall, the Division of Criminal Investigation of the Department of Public Safety, the Workforce Development Department, the Civil Rights Commission, or other local, state, or federal agencies.

Report Conclusions

The conclusion of the investigation is based on an evaluation of all of the information gathered during the investigation. There are three possible outcomes in a dependent adult evaluation or assessment:

- Founded: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence (more than 50%) that abuse has occurred. These are the only reports that are listed on the Central Abuse Registry. (See <u>Retention of Records</u>.)
- Unfounded: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence (more than 50%) that abuse has not occurred.
- Confirmed, not registered: It is determined by a preponderance of evidence (more than 50%) that the physical abuse or denial of critical care by a caretaker has occurred, but the abuse is determined to be minor, isolated, and unlikely to reoccur.

What Happens After the Evaluation?

Based on the evaluation, DHS completes an assessment of services needed by a dependent adult believed to be the victim of abuse, the dependent adult's family, or a caretaker. In some situations there are treatment services that are available and may be offered to assist the dependent adult.

DHS does not have independent legal authority to compel the acceptance of protective services. Adults have constitutional rights that guarantee certain freedoms. Adults have a right to self-determination and have the right to voluntarily accept services or to decline or refuse them. DHS strives to balance a person's right to personal freedom with the need to protect dependent adults who are unable to protect themselves.

Upon voluntary acceptance of the offer of services, DHS makes referrals or may provide necessary protective services to eligible dependent adults, their family members, and caretakers. The following services may be offered and provided without regard to income: dependent adult protection, social casework, adult day care, adult support, transportation, and family planning.

Law Enforcement Intervention

Iowa Code section 235B.3A gives the following responsibilities to law enforcement officers:

If a peace officer has reason to believe that dependent adult abuse, which is criminal in nature, has occurred, the officer shall use all reasonable means to prevent further abuse, including but not limited to any of the following:

- 1. If requested, remaining on the scene as long as there is a danger to the dependent adult's physical safety without the presence of a peace officer, including but not limited to staying in the dwelling unit, or if unable to remain at the scene, assisting the dependent adult in leaving the residence and securing support services or emergency shelter services.
- 2. Assisting the dependent adult in obtaining medical treatment necessitated by the dependent adult abuse, including providing assistance to the dependent adult in obtaining transportation to the emergency room of the nearest hospital.
- 3. Providing a dependent adult with immediate and adequate notice of the dependent adult's rights. The notice shall consist of handing the dependent adult a copy of the following written statement, requesting the dependent adult to read the card and asking the dependent adult whether the dependent adult understands the rights:
 - a. You have the right to ask the court for the following help on a temporary basis:
 - (1) Keeping the alleged perpetrator away from you, your home, and your place of work.
 - (2) The right to stay at your home without interference from the alleged perpetrator.
 - (3) Professional counseling for you, your family, or household members, and the alleged perpetrator of the dependent adult abuse.
 - b. If you are in need of medical treatment, you have the right to request that the peace officer present assist you in obtaining transportation to the nearest hospital or otherwise assist you.
 - c. If you believe that police protection is needed for your physical safety, you have the right to request that the peace officer present remain at the scene until you and other affected parties can leave or safety is otherwise ensured.

The notice shall also contain the telephone number of the local emergency shelter services, support services, or crisis lines operating in the area.

Court Action

DHS transmits a copy of the report of its evaluation or assessment to the local county attorney. The county attorney notifies the DHS local office of any actions or contemplated actions with respect to a suspected case of adult abuse.

When a dependent adult is the victim of a criminal act by the caretaker, the caretaker may be criminally charged for maltreatment of the dependent adult. Some examples are:

Neglect or abandonment of a dependent person
Wanton neglect of a dependent adult
Nonsupport of a dependent adult
Assault (various forms)
Sexual abuse (various forms)
Incest
Dependent adult abuse (various forms)
Iowa Code 726.8(1)
Iowa Code 726.8(2)
Iowa Code 708
Iowa Code 709
Iowa Code 726.2
Iowa Code 235B.20

When there is no way to protect a dependent adult adequately with voluntary services, the district court may be petitioned to intervene on behalf of the dependent adult. The district court can be petitioned to do any of the following:

- ♦ Authorize the provision of protective services to a dependent adult who is in need of services but lacks the capacity to consent to receipt of those services.
- ♦ Enjoin a caretaker from interfering with the provision of protective services to a dependent adult who is in need of such services and consents to the receipt of those services.
- Restrain a caretaker from abusing a dependent adult.
- Order the provision of the following to a dependent adult who has been the victim of dependent adult abuse when the dependent adult lacks capacity to consent to the receipt of services or is subject to an immediate threat to the person's health and safety, or when the dependent adult's abuse results in irreparable harm to the person's physical or financial resources or property:
 - Removal of the dependent adult to safer surroundings
 - Provision of medical services to the dependent
 - Provision of other needed services to the dependent adult

When DHS determines that the best interests of the dependent adult require court action, DHS may initiate action for:

- ♦ The appointment of a guardian or conservator, or
- ◆ The admission or commitment to an appropriate institution or facility, pursuant to the applicable procedures under Iowa Code Chapters 125, 222, 229, or 633.

When DHS determines a dependent adult is suffering from abuse which represents an immediate danger to the health or safety of the dependent adult and results in irreparable harm to the dependent adult or the physical or financial resources or the dependent adult, and the adult lacks the capacity to consent to receive services, DHS will petition the court to order any of the following:

- Remove the dependent adult to safer surroundings;
- Order the provision of medical services;
- ♦ Order the provision of available services, including emergency services; or
- ◆ Terminate a guardianship or conservatorship.

The county attorney shall assist DHS in the preparation of the necessary papers to initiate the action, and shall appear and represent DHS at all district court proceedings. DHS assists the district court during all stages of court proceedings involving a suspected case of adult abuse.

In every case involving adult abuse substantiated by DHS that results in a judicial proceeding on behalf of the dependent adult, the court shall appoint legal counsel to represent the dependent adult in the proceedings. The court may also appoint a guardian ad litem to represent the dependent adult when necessary to protect the dependent adult's best interests. The same attorney may be appointed to serve both as legal counsel and as guardian ad litem.

Before legal counsel or a guardian ad litem is appointed pursuant to 1983 lowa Acts, chapter 153, section 4, the court shall require the dependent adult to complete under oath a detailed financial statement. If, on the basis of that financial statement, the court deems that the dependent adult or the legally responsible person is able to bear all or a portion of the cost of the legal counsel or guardian ad litem, the court shall so order. When the dependent adult or the legally responsible person is unable to bear the cost of the legal counsel or guardian ad litem, the expense shall be paid out of the court expense fund.

Substance Abuse Commitment

Either the county attorney or an interested person may commence proceedings under lowa Code Chapter 125 for the involuntary commitment of a substance abuser to a facility.

Mental Health Commitment

Any interested person may commence proceedings under lowa Code Chapter 229 for the involuntary hospitalization of a person.

Conservatorship

A "conservatorship" is a court-authorized relationship under Iowa Code sections 633.566 – 633.667 whereby one person assumes the responsibility for the custody and control of the property of another. The person to whom custody of the property is awarded is called a "conservator." The person over whose property custody is granted is called a "ward."

The appointment of a conservator means that the ward is either under legal age or by reason of mental, physical, or other incapacity is unable to make or carry out important decisions concerning the ward's **financial** affairs. It does not mean that the ward is of unsound mind.

A petition for the appointment of a conservator of the property of a dependent adult may be sought to protect the property of the dependent adult if the protective concern is based on an imminent danger to that person's property. In the absence of legal action, no person has the right to manage the property of an adult contrary to the adult's consent.

Guardianship

When the concern is for the dependent adult's life, rather than the adult's property, a person may seek guardianship appointment to provide for the legal sanction of moving the adult or protecting the adult. In the absence of such legal action, no one has the right to physically relocate an adult against the adult's will. The appointment of a guardian, authorized under lowa Code sections 633.552 – 633.565, does not constitute an adjudication that the ward is of unsound mind.

How Is Dependent Adult Abuse Information Handled?

lowa Code section 235B.6 provides that confidentiality of dependent adult information shall be maintained, except as specifically authorized. DHS must withhold the name of the person who made the report of suspected dependent adult abuse. Only the court or the Central Abuse Registry may allow the release of that person's name.

Retention of Records

Information on all **founded** reports (whether evaluated by DHS or by DIA) is maintained on the Central Abuse Registry for 10 years and then sealed. EXCEPTION: When the dependent adult is responsible for self-denial of critical care, DHS keeps the report in the local office, not on the Central Registry. These are called "assessments" rather than "evaluations."

Information on DHS-evaluated reports that are **confirmed**, **not registered** is maintained in the local office for 5 years and then destroyed, unless a subsequent report is founded. If there is a subsequent report committed by the same caretaker within 5 years, the original report will be kept in the local office and sealed 10 years after the subsequent report.

Information on **unfounded** reports is destroyed 5 years from the date they were unfounded.

Reports that are **rejected** for evaluation or assessment are kept for 3 years and then expunged.

Access to Information

Access to "founded" or "unfounded" dependent adult abuse information is authorized to:

- "Subjects" of a report (the adult victim, the guardian or legal custodian of the adult victim, and the alleged perpetrator) or the attorney for any subject.
- ♦ An employee or agent of DHS responsible for investigating an abuse report.
- ◆ DHS personnel as necessary for the performance of their official duties.
- The mandatory reporter who reported the abuse.
- ♦ The long-term care resident's advocate.
- Multidisciplinary teams.

Access to "founded" dependent adult abuse information (not to "unfounded' information) is also authorized to:

- People involved in an investigation of dependent care, including a health practitioner or mental health professional, a law enforcement officer, a multidisciplinary team.
- ◆ Individuals, agencies, or facilities providing care to a dependent adult named in a report under some circumstances. This includes a facility licensing authority, a person or agency responsible for the care of a dependent adult victim or perpetrator, a DHS registration or licensing employee, or a person providing care to an adult who is regulated by DHS, and the legally authorized protection and advocacy agency.
- Judicial and administrative proceedings under some circumstances. This may include district court, a court or administrative agency hearing an appeal for correction of dependent adult abuse information, an expert witness at any stage of an appeal hearing, and a court or administrative agency making an unemployment compensation determination.

• A person conducting bona fide dependent adult abuse research.

- ◆ DHS personnel, a person or agency under contract with DHS to carry out the duties of the Registry, or the attorney for DHS.
- ♦ The Department of Justice.
- ◆ A legally constituted adult protection agency from another state for investigative or treatment purposes.
- A health care facility administrator or designee.
- State or local substitute decision maker.
- ◆ A nursing student program administrator and to the Board of Education for abuse background checks.
- ♦ A health care facility administrator or designee.
- State or local substitute decision maker.
- A nursing student program administrator and to the Board of Education for abuse background checks.

To Request Dependent Adult Abuse Information

To request dependent adult abuse information, complete form <u>470-0643</u>, Request for Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Information. A sample of this form is included at the end of this handbook. Send this form to the Central Abuse Registry. The address and fax number are at the top of the form.

A person who would not otherwise have access to dependent adult abuse information, may request this information on an individual who agrees to authorize this information for the purpose of a background check. This can be accomplished by completing form 470-3301, Authorization for Release of Child Dependent Adult Abuse Information. A sample of this form is included at the end of this handbook.

The form must be completed as follows:

- ◆ The person requesting the information must complete and sign the top section of the form, and
- The person authorizing the background check must sign in the middle section.

Dependent adult abuse information is limited to whether or not there is a record of the person being checked as having been found to have abused a dependent adult. The person requesting the information will fax or mail the form to the Central Abuse Registry. The address and fax number are at the top of the form. DHS will perform the background check and fax or mail it back to the requester.

Request for Correction or Expungement of Abuse Information

A subject of a dependent adult abuse report who feels there is incorrect or erroneous information contained in the evaluation or assessment report, or who disagrees with the conclusions of the report, may request correction of the report.

To request a correction of a report, a person must file a written statement to the effect that the information referring to the person is in whole or in part erroneous with DHS within six months of the date of the notice of the results of the evaluation. Submit to: DHS Appeals Section, 1305 E Walnut St, 5th Floor, Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0114

The local office social worker or the social worker's supervisor may wish to review the report, along with any additional information the requester provides. They may uphold, modify or overturn the original funding. A requester not satisfied with the local office review may request an administrative appeal hearing.

The administrative law judge may uphold, modify, or overturn the finding. DHS may defer the hearing until the conclusion of a court case relating to the information or findings.

If the requester is not satisfied with the decision of the administrative law judge, the matter may be appealed to the district court. The decision resulting from the hearing may be appealed to the court of Polk County or to the court of the district in which the person resides.

What Training Do Mandatory Reporters Need?

Iowa Code section 235B.16 requires that a mandatory reporter whose work involves the examination, attending, counseling, or treatment of adults on a regular basis shall:

- ◆ Obtain a statement of the abuse reporting requirements from the person's employer (or from DHS, if self-employed) within one month of initial employment or self-employment.
- ◆ Complete two hours of training relating to the identification and reporting of dependent adult abuse within six months of initial employment (or self-employment).
- Complete at least one hour of additional dependent adult abuse identification and reporting training every three years.

NOTE: These requirements do not apply to a physician whose professional practice does not regularly involve providing primary health care to adults.



(1) A dependent adult.

REPORT INFORMATION

Iowa Department of Human Services

SUSPECTED DEPENDENT ADULT ABUSE REPORT

This form may be used as the written report that mandatory reporters file with the Department of Human Services following an oral report of suspected dependent adult abuse. See page 2 for instructions.

(3) A caretaker, if applicable.

Phone

State

Zip Code

(2) Abuse as defined in Iowa Code 235B.

There are three criteria for a dependent adult abuse referral:

3. Caretaker: (Omit if deprivation is by the dependent adult.)

		Phone (Birth D	Date
		City	State	Zip Code
endent a	dult because:		I	
oted: \Box	Physical Assault	☐ Denial of care by de	pendent adul	t
	Personal Degradation	☐ Denial of care by ca	retaker	
se 🗆	Unreasonable punishment	Unreasonable confir	nement	
•	oted:	endent adult because: oted: Physical Assault Personal Degradation se Unreasonable	city endent adult because: oted: Physical Assault Personal Degradation Degradation Se Unreasonable Unreasonable Unreasonable	City State endent adult because: Oted: Physical Assault Denial of care by dependent adult Degradation Degradation Degradation Degradation Unreasonable Unreasonable confinement

DED	INIEC	TIANI

Person is a caretaker because:

Name

Street

REPORTER INFORMATION		
Name	Position	Relationship to Adult
Office Address		Phone
		()
Names of other mandatory reporters who have knowledg	e of the abuse	
Signature of Reporter		Date

City

Instructions for Completing Form 470-2441, Suspected Dependent Adult Abuse Report

- ⇒ The mandatory reporter who has made the initial oral report of suspected abuse to the Department of Human Services prepares this form.
- ⇒ Submit this form <u>within 48 hours</u> of the oral report to the Protective Service Unit that will be conducting the evaluation or assessment.
- ⇒ If the oral report was not accepted for evaluation or assessment, this form is not necessary.
- ⇒ If your agency has a report form or letter format that includes all of the information requested on this form, you may use the agency format in place of form 470-2441.

Use the space below if there is not enough space for all pertinent information on the front of this form. You can attach collateral reports or other information to the form.



Iowa Department of Human Services

Authorization for Release of Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Information

This form must be used to authorize release of child or dependent adult abuse information when the person requesting the information does not have independent access to it under lowa law. Complete a separate form for each person for whom information is requested and email to dhsabuseregistry@dhs.state.ia.us, or fax to (515) 564-4112, or mail to the lowa Department of Human Services, Central Abuse Registry, P.O. Box 4826, Des Moines, IA 50305.

Please specify which abuse registry you are required. Child Abuse Registry Dependent	0,	checking the Abuse Regis		w: Both	
Please specify your preferred method of respon		· ·	-		Section 1.
☐ Address ☐ Fax		3		Email	
Section 1: To be completed by the person	or agenc	y requestin	g the information.		
Requester: Last First	A	gency Name		Telephone	Number
Address				Fax Numb	er
City		State	Zip Code	Èmail	
List the name and address of the person whose i	nformation	n is being red	quested:		
Name (last, first, middle)			Birth Date	Social Sec	urity Number
Address	City		County	State	Zip Code
List maiden name, previous married names, and	any alias:			1	
What is the purpose of your request for child or d	ependent	adult abuse	information?		
I have read and understand the legal provisions f on the second page of this form.	or handlin	g child and o	dependent adult abuse	e information	which is printed
Signature of Requestor				Date	
Section 2: To be completed by the person child or dependent adult abuse			partment of Human	Services to	o release their
I understand that my signature authorizes the rec Abuse or Dependent Adult Abuse Registry as ha (Iowa Code section 235B.6). To the best of my k	ving abuse	ed a child (Io	wa Code section 235	A.15) or dep	endent adult
Signature of Person Authorizing				Date	
Section 3: To be completed by the Central	Abuse R	egistry or a	lesignee.		
 The person whose information is being requested. The person whose information is being requested a dependent adult. The person whose information is being requested abused a dependent adult. This request for information is denied because 	ested is no ested is list ested is no	ot listed on the ted on the Dot listed on the Dot listed on the	e Child Abuse Regist ependent Adult Abuse e Dependent Adult Al	ry as having e Registry as	abused a child. having abused
Signature of Registry Staff or Designee				Date	
Comments					

470-3301 (Rev. 07/19) Copy1: Central Registry Copy 2: Returned to Requestor

LEGAL PROVISIONS FOR HANDLING CHILD AND DEPENDENT ADULT ABUSE INFORMATION

Redissemination of Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Information (Iowa Code sections 235A.17 and 235B.8)

A person, agency, or other recipient of child or dependent adult abuse information shall not redisseminate (release) this information, except that redissemination is permitted when **ALL** of the following conditions apply:

- ◆ The redissemination is for official purposes in connection with prescribed duties or, in the case of a health practitioner, pursuant to professional responsibilities.
- ♦ The person to whom such information would be redisseminated would have independent access to the same information under lowa Code sections 235A.15 or 235B.6.
- ♦ A written record is made of the redissemination, including the name of the recipient and the date and purpose of the redissemination.
- The written record is forwarded to the Central Abuse Registry within 30 days of the redissemination.

Criminal Penalties (Iowa Code sections 235A.21 and 235B.12)

A person is guilty of a criminal offense when the person:

- Willfully requests, obtains, or seeks to obtain child or dependent adult abuse information under false pretenses, or
- ♦ Willfully communicates or seeks to communicate child or dependent adult abuse information to any agency or person except in accordance with Iowa Code sections 235A.15, 235A.17, 235B.6, and 235B.8, or
- ♦ Is connected with any research authorized pursuant to Iowa Code sections 235A.15 and 235B.6 and willfully falsifies child or dependent adult abuse information or any records relating to child or dependent adult abuse.

Upon conviction for each offense, the person is guilty of a serious misdemeanor punishable by a fine or imprisonment.

Any person who knowingly, but without criminal purposes, communicates or seeks to communicate child or dependent adult abuse information except in accordance with Iowa Code sections 235A.15, 235A.17, 235B.6, and 235B.8 is guilty of a simple misdemeanor punishable, upon conviction for each offense, by a fine or imprisonment.

Any reasonable grounds for belief that a person has violated any provision of Iowa Code Chapters 235A or 235B shall be grounds for the immediate withdrawal of any authorized access that person might otherwise have to child or dependent adult abuse information.

470-3301 (Rev. 07/19) Copy1: Central Registry Copy 2: Returned to Requestor



Iowa Department of Human Services

Request for Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Information

Persons or agencies with authorized access to child or dependent adult abuse information must use this form to request information about a child or dependent adult abuse report. **Complete a separate form for each family or individual** and email to dhsabuseregistry@dhs.state.ia.us, or fax to (515) 564-4112, or mail to the Iowa Department of Human Services, Central Abuse Registry, P.O. Box 4826, Des Moines, IA 50305.

☐ Child abuse request	□ Dependent	adult abuse reque	est	☐ Both			
Please specify your preferred. Address	ed method of resp	onse by checking	a box and	completing the info	ormation in	Section 1.	
Section 1: To be complet	ed by the person	or agency reques	ting the i	nformation.			
Requester: Last	First	Agency N	Agency Name			Telephone Number	
Address					Fax Numb	oer	
City		State	Zip	Code	Email		
Relationship to the persons	listed in Section 2	or 3:	l				
Purpose for request:							
State the Iowa Code section	n that allows access	s to the child or de	ependent a	adult abuse informa	tion request	ed:	
I have read and understand on the second page of this f							
Signature of Requester			Dat	e			
Complete Section 2 if the po	urpose of this recor	d check is employ	ment, licei	nsing or registration	ı, or paymer	nt approval.	
Section 2: List the name	and address of the	e person whose r	ecord is l	being checked.			
Last	First	Middle		Birth Date	Social Sec	curity Number	
Address	First	Middle		Birth Date County	Social Sec	Zip Code	
		City				, ,	
Address	rious married name	City es, and any alias:	mary of th	County	State	Zip Code	
Address List maiden name, any prev Complete Section 3 if the re	vious married name equest is for a copy	City es, and any alias: of the written sum		County	State on or assess	Zip Code	
Address List maiden name, any prev Complete Section 3 if the re Section 3: List the na	vious married name equest is for a copy	City es, and any alias: of the written sum		County e abuse investigation	State on or asses	Zip Code	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the resection 3: Section 3: List the national family members	rious married name equest is for a copy time of the persons s.	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a	re reques	County e abuse investigation.	State on or asses	Zip Code sment.	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the resection 3: Section 3: List the national family members	rious married name equest is for a copy time of the persons s.	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a	re reques	County e abuse investigation.	on or asses Attach pag ate Soc	Zip Code sment.	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the research Section 3 if the national family members Last	vious married name equest is for a copy name of the persons s. First	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a Middle	re reques	county te abuse investigation ting information. Birth Da	on or asses Attach pag ate Soc	Zip Code sment. res for cial Security #	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the results the name additional family members. Last Address	vious married name equest is for a copy me of the persons s. First	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a Middle	re reques	county te abuse investigation ting information. Birth Da	on or asses Attach pag ate Soc	Zip Code sment. res for cial Security #	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the resection 3 if the resection 3: List the national family member of the section 3: Last Address List maiden name, any previous control of the section 3:	rious married name equest is for a copy ame of the persons s. First rious married name signee decision.	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a Middle	re reques	county te abuse investigation ting information. Birth Da	on or asses Attach pag ate Soc	Zip Code sment. res for cial Security #	
Address List maiden name, any previous Complete Section 3 if the result of Section 3 if the result of Section 3: List the name additional family member of Section 4: Registry or descriptions of Section 4: Regist	rious married name equest is for a copy me of the persons s. First rious married name signee decision. ation is approved.	City es, and any alias: of the written sum s for whom you a Middle es, and any alias:	re reques	county te abuse investigation ting information. Birth Da	on or asses Attach pag ate Soc	Zip Code sment. res for cial Security #	

470-0643 (Rev. 07/19) Copy1: Central Registry or Designee Copy 2: County Office

LEGAL PROVISIONS FOR HANDLING CHILD AND DEPENDENT ADULT ABUSE INFORMATION

Redissemination of Child and Dependent Adult Abuse Information (Iowa Code sections 235A.17 and 235B.8)

A person, agency, or other recipient of child or dependent adult abuse information shall not redisseminate (release) this information, except that redissemination is permitted when **ALL** of the following conditions apply:

- The redissemination is for official purposes in connection with prescribed duties or, in the case of a health practitioner, pursuant to professional responsibilities.
- ♦ The person to whom such information would be redisseminated would have independent access to the same information under lowa Code sections 235A.15 or 235B.6.
- ♦ A written record is made of the redissemination, including the name of the recipient and the date and purpose of the redissemination.
- ♦ The written record is forwarded to the Central Abuse Registry within 30 days of the redissemination.

Criminal Penalties (Iowa Code sections 235A.21 and 235B.12)

A person is guilty of a criminal offense when the person:

- Willfully requests, obtains, or seeks to obtain child or dependent adult abuse information under false pretenses, or
- ♦ Willfully communicates or seeks to communicate child or dependent adult abuse information to any agency or person except in accordance with Iowa Code sections 235A.15, 235A.17, 235B.6, and 235B.8, or
- ♦ Is connected with any research authorized pursuant to Iowa Code sections 235A.15 and 235B.6 and willfully falsifies child or dependent adult abuse information or any records relating to child or dependent adult abuse.

Upon conviction for each offense, the person is guilty of a serious misdemeanor punishable by a fine or imprisonment.

Any person who knowingly, but without criminal purposes, communicates or seeks to communicate child or dependent adult abuse information except in accordance with Iowa Code sections 235A.15, 235A.17, 235B.6, and 235B.8 is guilty of a simple misdemeanor punishable, upon conviction for each offense, by a fine or imprisonment.

Any reasonable grounds for belief that a person has violated any provision of Iowa Code Chapters 235A or 235B shall be grounds for the immediate withdrawal of any authorized access that person might otherwise have to child or dependent adult abuse information.

REQUESTS FOR CORRECTION OR EXPUNGEMENT OF A CHILD OR DEPENDENT ADULT ABUSE REPORT

To request an administrative appeal hearing of a child or dependent adult abuse report, please submit a request in writing to: Department of Human Services, Appeals Section, 5th FI, 1305 E Walnut St, Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0114. You will be notified in writing acknowledging receipt of your request; time, date, and place of your hearing; and any decisions regarding your request. If you disagree with this decision, the written notice will explain how you may request an administrative hearing about the report and its conclusions per Iowa Code sections 235A.19 or 235B.10.

470-0643 (Rev. 07/19) Copy1: Central Registry or Designee Copy 2: County Office



Dependent Adult Abuse Categories

Physical abuse

Physical abuse is defined as, "Physical injury to, or injury which is at a variance with the history given of the injury, or unreasonable confinement unreasonable punishment, or assault of a dependent adult, as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker."

Sexual abuse

lowa Code defines sexual abuse as, "The commission of a sexual offense under chapter 709 or section 726.2 with or against a dependent adult as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker.

Within those chapters indicated, examples of sexual abuse include:

- First-degree sexual abuse
- Second-degree sexual abuse
- Third-degree sexual abuse
- Indecent exposure
- Assault with intent to commit sexual abuse
- Sexual exploitation by a counselor or therapist
- Sexual exploitation of a dependent adult
- Invasion of privacy, nudity
- Incest

Sexual exploitation

Sexual exploitation by a caretaker means any consensual or non-consensual sexual conduct with a dependent adult. This includes but is not limited to kissing; touching the clothed or unclothed inner thigh, breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals; or a sex act as defined by the lowa Code. Sexual exploitation also includes the transmission, display, or taking of electronic images of the unclothed breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals of a dependent adult by a caretaker, for a purpose not related to treatment or diagnosis or as part of an ongoing assessment, evaluation, or investigation. The purpose of sexual exploitation is the arousal and satisfaction of the sexual desires of the caretaker, and is not spontaneous or accidental.

Exploitation

Exploitation is the act or process of: • Taking unfair advantage of a dependent adult or the adult's physical or financial resources without the informed consent of the dependent adult, including theft • By the use of undue influence, harassment, duress, deception, false representation, or false pretenses • As a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker. Financial exploitation includes the misuse of power of attorney or conservatorship, identify theft, scams, coercion into signing or changing legal documents, or the taking or misusing of the dependent adults property, such as money, food stamps, or medication. Financial exploitation occurs when the caretaker knowingly unfair advantage of resources misappropriating funds belonging to the dependent adult without the informed consent of the dependent adult

Denial of critical care and Self-Denial of Critical Care

The deprivation of the minimum food, shelter, clothing, supervision, physical or mental healthcare, or other care necessary to maintain the life or health of a dependent adult, as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of a caretaker or the dependent adult.

Personal Degradation

Personal Degradation of a Dependent Adult was added in 2019 for DHS. This new provision states that personal degradation is a willful act or statement by a caretaker in a facility or program that is intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the dependent adult's personal dignity. The language further provides that personal degradation is a willful act or statement by a caretaker where the caretaker reasonably should have known that the act or statement would harm the personal dignity of a reasonable person.



Dependent Adult Abuse in Facilities and Program Categories

The Department of Inspections and Appeals (DIA) is responsible for reports of dependent adult abuse in facilities or programs

Physical Injury

A physical injury to, or injury which is at a variance with the history given of the injury, or unreasonable confinement, unreasonable punishment, or assault of a dependent adult which involves a breach of skill, care, and learning ordinarily exercised by a caretaker in similar circumstances.

"Assault of a dependent adult" means the commission of any act which is generally intended to cause pain or injury to a dependent adult, or which is generally intended to result in physical contact which would be considered by a reasonable person to be insulting or offensive or any act which is intended to place another in fear of immediate physical contact which will be painful, injurious, insulting, or offensive, coupled with the apparent ability to execute the act.

Sexual Offense

Any sex act between persons is sexual abuse by either of the persons when the act is performed with the other person in any of the following circumstances: 1. The act is done by force or against the will of the other. If the consent or acquiescence of the other is procured by threats of violence toward any person or if the act is done while the other is under the influence of a drug inducing sleep or is otherwise in a state of unconsciousness, the act is done against the will of the other. 2. Such other person is suffering from a mental defect or incapacity which precludes giving consent, or lacks the mental capacity to know the right and wrong of conduct in sexual matters.

Neglect of a Dependent Adult

Neglect of a dependent adult is the deprivation of the minimum food, shelter, clothing, supervision, physical or mental health care, or other care necessary to maintain a dependent adult's life or physical or mental health.

Exploitation

Exploitation is when a caretaker who knowingly obtains, uses, endeavors to obtain to use, or who misappropriates, a dependent adult's funds, assets, medications, or property with the intent to temporarily or permanently deprive a dependent adult of the use, benefit, or possession of the funds, assets, medication, or property for the benefit of someone other than the dependent adult.

Sexual Exploitation

The sexual exploitation of a dependent adult by a caretaker, whether within a facility, a program, or at a location outside of a facility or program is any consensual or nonconsensual sexual conduct with a dependent adult which includes but is not limited to kissing; touching of the clothed or unclothed breast, groin, buttock, anus, pubes, or genitals; or a sex act.

Personal Degradation

Personal Degradation of a Dependent Adult was added in 2017 for DIA. This new provision states that personal degradation is a willful act or statement by a caretaker in a facility or program that is intended to shame, degrade, humiliate, or otherwise harm the dependent adult's personal dignity. The language further provides that personal degradation is a willful act or statement by a caretaker where the caretaker reasonably should have known that the act or statement would harm the personal dignity of a reasonable person.



Indicators of Dependent Adult Abuse

Anyone can be a perpetrator, and anyone can be a victim!

Environment

- No food in the house or rotted, infested food
- Lack of proper food storage
- Special dietary foods not available
- Inadequate cooking facilities or equipment
- Clothes extremely dirty or uncared for
- Not dressed appropriately for the weather
- Inadequate or ill-fitting clothing, not dressing
- Wearing all of one's clothing at once
- Structure dilapidated or in poor repair
- Fallen steps, high grass, rotted porch, leaking roof
- Utilities cut off or lack of heat in winter
- Doors or windows made out of cardboard
- Unvented gas heaters, chimney in poor repair
- No fuel for heating or fuel stored dangerously
- Lack of water or contaminated water
- Gross accumulation of garbage, papers, and clutter
- · Lack of access to essential rooms
- Lack of access to community resources
- Lives on the street
- Large number of pets with no apparent means of care
- No income, unpaid bills
- Out of money by second week of the month
- Income does not meet monthly expenditures
- Signs checks over to others
- Sudden change in money management habits
- Sudden withdrawals or closing out of bank accounts
- No TV, radio, telephone, newspapers, magazines
- No friends or family visits
- No means of transportation
- Not physically able to get out and shop, pay bills, etc.

Physical Condition

- Lack of medical care
- Lack of personal cleanliness and grooming, body odors
- Swollen eyes or ankles, decayed teeth or no teeth
- Bites, fleas, sores, lesions, lacerations
- Multiple or repeated or untreated injuries

- Injuries incompatible with explanation
- Bruises, broken bones or burns
- Untreated pressure sores
- Signs of confinement (tied to furniture, locked in a room, etc.)
- Obesity, malnourishment or dehydration
- Tremors
- Difficulty in communication
- Broken glasses frames or lenses
- Drunk, overly medicated
- Lying in urine, feces, old food
- · No use of limbs, lack of mobility

Behavior

- Intentional physical self-abuse, suicidal statements
- Persistent liar
- Does not follow medication directions
- Refuses needed medical attention
- Refuses to accept services offered by others
- Threatens or attacks others physically or verbally
- Refuses to accept presence of visitor
- Refuses to open door
- In total darkness
- Denies obvious problems (medical conditions, etc.)
- Increased depression, anxiety or hostility
- Withdrawn, reclusive, suspicious, timid, unresponsive
- Refuses to discuss the situation
- Lack of trust in family as well as in others
- Refuses to take medication
- Denies any wrong-doing, medically or otherwise
- Unjustified pride in self-sufficiency
- Procrastination
- Turns off hearing aid
- Hallucinations, confusion or delusions
- Disorientation as to place and time
- Forgetfulness, losing things, not shutting stove off
- · Loneliness, anger, or fearfulness
- Diminished mental capacity
- Vague health complaints
- Longing for death



Additional Resources

If a person is in imminent danger, call 911!

Iowa Department of Human Services

To report abuse, neglect, exploitation, or self- neglect of a dependent adult.

1-800-362-2178 (toll-free, 24/7)

https://dhs.iowa.gov/DependentAdultProtectiveServices/Families

Iowa Department on Aging

The Department strives to improve the quality of life and care of older lowans through advocacy, planning, policy development and the administration and support of statewide programs. 1-800-532-3213

https://www.iowaaging.gov/

Iowa Department of Inspections and Appeals

If you suspect dependent adult abuse in a facility or program, report the incident to the Health Facilities Division complaint Unit.

1-877-686-0027

https://dia.iowa.gov/